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The Dixon Property consists basically of three houses, a mill and 
several barns. The main buildings will be considered individually.

The Aaron Miller House

This is the oldest building on the Dixon Farm. The original 
builder and owner Frederick Miller, built the house in 1760. The walls 
are native sandstone and over 12" thick. The stones were quarred at 
Great Notch.

With this house, a tradition was started that all Miller houses 
were built into the side of a bank. This one was built into the 
north side.

The original house had a keeping room with fireplace and dutch 
oven (on the outside), the original room, and one room finished over 
the original room. There was also an open loft in the front part of 
the house.

An addition was added sometime later and the house now has two 
front doors. Another finished room was added over the new section. 
The upstairs rooms were reached by straight up ladders. Both front 
rooms have the original fireplaces and one room has an original and 
very crude corner cabinet. The dining room was added about 1820.

In 1898, the house was remodeled. The original floors/,doors, 
hardware and windows were removed. Front and rear dormers were added 
to the roof. The corner cabinet and the second fireplace were the 
only things left untouched. The first fireplace was restoned to its 
original size in 1960.

The present house is 42' x 33' with five rooms on the 1st floor 
and six on the second floor.

A wagon or carriage house once stood behind this house. 

Forge Keeper's House

This house was built and owned by James Dixon. It is built next 
to a pond with a waterfall. Dixon built the pond in 1830 and the house 
in 1840.

The original house, built for the forge keeper, had two rooms, 
one upstairs and one down. The house is white clapboard with green 
shutters. There was a shed-type lean-to in the back of the downstairs 
room. The house still has the original wide floor boards. The main 
room has a very shallow fireplace. The shed area was enlarged and 
walled in about 1860. The original well is still in the cellar.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Miller family was one of the first to settle in what is now 
Boonton Township. The Dixon Family married into the Miller family and 
came to own the present property.

The Dixon Farm significance lies primarily in its development as a 
farm complex. The Dixon Farm has been the home of the Dixon family 
for over seven generations. The site is the largest and one of the 
most significant in Boonton Township.

The Dixon property shows the way in which a farm complex can 
develop. The Dixons inherited the property from the Miller family 
who began to develop the site in 1760. Originally planned for farming, 
when it was found to be profitableaa forge was set up; another addition 
was a mill. Thus what was essentially an agrarian lifestyle was able 
to be expanded on by the innovative owners.

All through the 18th century the Morris County countryside was 
developing into rolling farmlands and small villages and farm complexes. 
The Dixon property is representative of this. By the second quarter 
of the 19th century the Dixon's had established a working community. 
This was typical of the times. The descendents of the early settlers 
were joined by others who brought with them a needed trade or profession 
that helped to make the farm self-sufficient.

From the late 19th century until the present there has been 
negligible development occuring in the farm. Consequently, this pro­ 
vides the county and the State with an excellent presentation of a 
second and third quarter 19th century farm complex with intermittent 
examples of late 18th and early 19th century construction methods.

The Dixon Farm is rich in the history and development of what is 
now known as Boonton Township. Originally purchased by the Miller 
family it only began to prosper when the Dixons acquired it. The 
property is an very good living example of farm complexes which are 
slowly becoming non-existant due to urban population growth eliminating 
the space needed for adequate farming.
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7. DESCRIPTION (cont.)

The house was remodeled in 1940. A front porch and dormer 
windows were added.

The forge, no longer standing, was to the rear of the house. The 
remains of the forge spillway can still be seen.

A blacksmith shop, no longer extant, stood at the entrance to the 
property.

^

Dixon's Mill

The original Grist Mill once stood by the small pond to the left 
of the Stone House. The mill was built about 1800 by Aaron Miller. 
It had an undershot wheel.

The original mill was replaced by the present one in 1830. The 
present mill was placed on the hillside beyond the site of the original, 
James Dixon had this mill moved to the property from Tony's Brook in 
Montclair, New Jersey. Also in 1830 James Dixon constructed the pond 
which is behind the property to accommodate the mill which had an 
overshot wheel.

This mill is a two stone mill, witJr all of the workings intact. 
In 1890, the water wheel was removed and replaced by a turbine.

Cyrus Dixon House

This house was built c. 185£ on the hill overlooking Rockaway 
Valley.

The original kitchen was a rough, unfinished room on the left side 
of the house. A Dutch Oven was built on the outside of this kitchen. 
Other first floor rooms include a living room, dining room, pantry, 
hall, sitting room and new kitchen. An addition was added in 1936 which 
added 3 rooms to the first floor.

The second floor included 4 rooms. The 1936 addition added 2 
rooms and several closets.

The exterior of the house remains the same today as it did in 1891

A map of the district delineating boundaries and historic properties is 

attached.
GPO 892 455
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Inventory of Historic Structures Located Within the Dixon Property

1. Aaron Miller House, 2 stories, sandstone.

2. Forge Keeper T s House, 2 stories, clapboard, 20th c. porch.

3. Cyrus Dixon House, c. 1865, 2 stories, clapboard, Victorian Gingerbread Porch,

4. Dixon 1 s Mill, 21/2 stories, clapboard.

5. Barn, 1898 2 stories, vertical board, siding, cupola, bankbarn.

6. Barn, 1864, 1 1/2 stories, vertical board, siding, stone foundation, Bankbarn,
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Pamphlets
Rockaway Valley Methodist Church, 125th Anniversary, October 1, 196?

Newspaper
Boonton Times-Bulletin, Vol. 98, #9, Monday, November 25, 1968.

Notes and Conversations

Alex Fowler, 14*5 Vreeland Ave., Boonton, NJ
H.ft. Sdhroeder, Split Rock Road, R*D. #2, Boonton NJ

Various members of the Dixon family
Rockaway Valley Road, R.D. #3, Boonton Twp., NJ
Jane Dixon, Bruce Dixon, Bryant Dixon, Harriet Dixon, Homer Dixon,
Cyrus Byram Dixon II.
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